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D Mpved }uf Original Site

The Watson House is probably the earliest surviving stone house 
in Mercer County. Reflecting English house construction of the late 
l?th century, we notice the overriding concern with basic protection 
from the elements in the steeply pitched roofs, the small window open­ 
ings, and the pent eaves. House building at this time in America and 
England was still late medieval in its necessary concern for survival. 
It is two stories high with tall windows in the attic level. Two 
assymmetrically placed windows open up the long facades along with 
center dcors. A huge fireplace occupies each of the end walls of the 
first floor, which is divided into two large simple rooms. The walls 
were reputedly mahogany planked, although modem pine is now in place. 
Three lateral champfered beams support the floor joists of the second 
floor. A restored enclosed spiral staircase to the left of the west 
facade center door ascends to the second floor, laid out in a center 
hall, side bedroom plan. The south end bedroom has a restored segmen- 
tal arch brick fireplace. The two rooms on the other side of the hall 
have none.

The most fascinating aspect of this house is the heavy, bowed 
timber A-frame construction. The three principal roof supports spring 
in graceful arcs from inside the masonry walls. Lesser rafters, many 
of which are original and pegged at their peaks, rest on the outside 
walls. The intersections of the tie beams along with horizontal roof 
supports Into the large timbers constitue virtuoso house frame joinery.

The house was extensively restored under Mr. Mountford. New roofs, 
chimneys, pent eaves, windows and interior woodwork infer how seriously 
ravaged the house was over the years. The DAR has furnished the house 
and use it as a museum and headquarters. The basic house form and 
frame construction tell us much of competent house building in New 
Jersey at this time.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

William Watson, a member of the Society of Friends, gathered his 
three children and left his home in Nottinghamshire, England, on May 29, 
168U. They sailed from Bristol on June 5th and arrived in Philadelphia 
eight weeks later. He lived there for a while but then bought 700 acres 
of land llin the township of Nottingham in the County of Burlington, in 
the Province of .Vest Jersey1*. He sited his log cabin on a bluff over­ 
looking a stream which provided good transportation to the produce 
markets of Philadelphia. The Leni-Lenape Indians had lived on these 
bluffs. Archeological activity has uncovered the evidence of an Indian 
village and pottery.

.Isaac Watson -became a farmer, surveyor, constable and Overseer of 
the Highways. After his father died, about 1708, he built this imposing 
stone house on the property on the bluffs of Watson's Creek, a plot 
which had increased to 800 acres. His continued prosperity is revealed 
by an inventory of July 22, 1727, which totalled just over 1 800 (800 
pounds).

Watson donated laod, now part of the Riverview Cemetery in Trenton, 
as a burying ground for members of the Society of Friends, where he is 
probably buried. The modest initialed grave markers have deteriorated 
under the ravages of time and weather.

The last Watson to live here was Isaac's grandson. Joseph, who 
died in 1837.

The house, now owned by the county, was restored by the State 
Society of the Daughters of the American Revolution of New Jersey under 
the guidance of architect William Mountford, as part of the New 
Jersey Tercentenary.
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7. Description

RESTORATION: The Watson House was in a state of neglect and disrepair before 
its restoration in the mid 1960 f s. On the exterior all the doors and win­ 
dows were out. The windows were replaced with the present leaded case­ 
ment windows, and exterior oak doors were added. The caretaker f s wing 
was added, copying a form from a similar house of the period. Cedar 
shingles were used on the roof replacing the tin roof, and pent roofs were 
built as indicated by remaining evidence. The dormers were removed; they 
were not original as clearly indicated in the attic roof framing. A winder, 
enclosed stair was reconstructed, following marks in the framing, replacing 
a later period straight run stair. The plaster walls on the first floor 
were removed, revealing evidence of former panelled walls; these walls 
were reconstructed using vertical pine boards. Apparently only the second 
floor mantel was intact. The other mantels have been reconstructed. 
Though most of the floor framing is original, all the flooring is new. 
Most of the roof framing is original. Of particular note are the 5 great 
rafters bents. These rafters are of a single timber, and several feet 
from the plate of the stone walls. The rafter timbers are crucked.

In summary the masonry walls and framing is original, however, much of 
the fabric has been replaced.
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